
Adult Commissioning Committee 
In line with advice from HM Government, the council is now holding only essential 
meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and 
councillors. These meetings are being held electronically and, unfortunately, you will 
not be able to attend them.   

However, the City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public 
involvement and input into the decision-making process. 

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Decision notices or minutes from meetings will be available as appropriate. Should you 
wish to view decisions taken meetings of the Cabinet and other Lead Member 
Briefings, they will be available for viewing on the council website - 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Wednesday, 8 July 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 13 May 2020 and Matters 
Arising 

3a Draft Minutes for Approval (Pages 1 - 6)

3b Matters Arising (Pages 7 - 8)

ITEMS FOR DECISION 

4  NHS 111 - Contract Extension (Pages 9 - 18)

Public Document Pack

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE 

5  Integrated Fund Financial Plan Report (2020-21) (Pages 19 - 32)

6  Adults Strategic System Priorities and Full Annual Business 
Plan 

(Pages 33 - 60)

7  Any Other Urgent Business 

8  Dates of Future Meetings 

Location or method of meetings to be confirmed in due course:

Wednesday 09 September 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 14 October 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 11 November 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 13 January 2021 at 14:00
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00
Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00

Contact Officer: Carol Eddleston
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


MINUTES OF ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

Wednesday 13 May 2020, 14:00 – 15:32 via MS Teams

Present:
Mr David Flinn (DF) Neighbourhood Lead – CCG
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer – SCC
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH) Lead Member for Finance & Support Services
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods - CCG
Dr David McKelvey (DMcK) Neighbourhood Lead – CCG
Mrs Karen Proctor (KP) Director of Commissioning – CCG
Dr Tom Regan (TR) Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG
Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing – SCC – Chair
Mr David Warhurst (DH) Chief Finance Officer – CCG

Charlotte Ramsden (CR) Strategic Director – People – SCC
(left the meeting at 15:30 in order to attend another meeting – had advised in advance of anticipated 
departure time)

Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT) Medical Director – CCG – Co-chair 
(joined the meeting at 15:15 due to a clash of commitments - had advised in advance of anticipated 
joining time)

In Attendance
Mr Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning – CCG
Mrs Gillian McLauchlan (GM) Deputy Director of Public Health – SCC
Ms Tori Quin (TQ) Acting Head of Service Improvement - CCG
Ms Carol Eddleston (CAE) Senior Democratic Services Advisor – SCC

Apologies
Mr Steve Dixon (SD) Chief Accountable Officer – CCG
Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation - CCG
Ms Claire Vaughan (CV) Head of Medicines Optimisation

1. Apologies and Declarations of Interest

a) Apologies
The above apologies were noted.

b) Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2. Minutes of the Last Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 March were approved as a correct record.

The following matters arising were to be followed up:

Minute 5(b) – NWAS performance to be proposed to the GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for a 
scrutiny review, and

Minute 8(b) – Salford Women’s Centre – commissioning and referral process.

3. Items for Decision

a) Empower You

HG and TQ presented a report which sought approval to award a contract for the Empower You 
short-term intensive programme which enabled disabled people and those around them to lead 
active lifestyles by making existing community provision more accessible.

Empower You was originally an Innovation Fund project, developed and delivered by Unlimited 
Potential, that received national recognition, including on the BBC’s The One Show. A full business 
case for sustaining the project which was presented to the Integrated Community Based Care 
Commissioning Group (ICBCCG) in May 2018 had demonstrated good outcomes, but the delivery 
model only permitted a small number of disabled people to benefit from the initiative as it was 
delivered on a one to one basis.  Following a request from the group, Unlimited Potential had 
worked on a new delivery model which would support a larger number of people to participate in 
group-based activities and benefit at a lower cost per beneficiary.

Members of the committee were highly supportive of the initiative but acknowledged that the cost 
of the contract was not already built into the budget assumptions for 2020/21. The anticipated 
reduction in demand for NHS and social care services was not immediately quantifiable as this would 
only be derived in the longer term but clinical experts were confident that a programme of this 
nature would help to reduce costs in the longer term by reducing health inequalities, long term 
conditions and morbidity in a large vulnerable group.

The committee was mindful that current social distancing requirements would inevitably impact on 
some of the activities but urged commissioners to work with Unlimited Potential to identify what 
could still be offered within the programme at this time.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee endorsed the recommendation of the Service and Finance 
Group to commission Unlimited Potential to provide the Empower You programme, for a period of 
three years, at a cost of £83,468 per year with inflationary uplifts, with two optional extensions of 
12 months each, subject to the agreement of Key Performance Indicators and a monitoring 
framework.

b) Healthy Living Centres

KP presented a report which sought formal approval from the committee for the extension of the 
contacts for three Healthy Living Centres in Salford for an initial period of 12 months, with a further 
optional extension of 12 months.

Page 2



At its March meeting, the committee had been highly complimentary of the services provided at the 
three centres and had been fully supportive of the proposal to extend the contract. At that time it 
was understood that the formal decision would need to be taken by the CCG Governing Body as it 
exceeded the Adults’ Commissioning Committee’s spend approval limit. However, since that 
meeting, further clarity had been provided on the decision-making governance and it had been 
confirmed that each of the centres was subject to a separate contract, all of which fell within the 
committee’s approval limits.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee approved the extension of the three Healthy Living Centre 
providers for a period of 12 months, with an optional extension of a further 12 months as follows:

Social Adventures - annual contract value £510,476

Langworthy Cornerstone Association - annual contract value £346,984

Big Life - annual contract value £180,097.

4. Items for Assurance

a) Finance Report

DW presented a report which provided the final position in relation to the financial performance of 
the adults’ element of the integrated fund for 2019/20. The year-end outturn for the fund was a 
c£3.0 overspend, which represented a c£0.3m deterioration from the last finance report. 

DW reminded the committee that members had sought clarification at the last meeting about the 
‘Year to Date’ and ‘Annual Variance’ figures relating to ‘other’ [row 6 in Appendix 1]. He was able to 
confirm that this had been a transposition error and had not affected the bottom line in any way.

He confirmed that Covid-19 costs were not currently being managed through the integrated fund 
and consequently did not form part of the overspend. All hospital contracts had been set nationally, 
with contracts currently blocked until the end of October, so there was no financial incentive in the 
treatment of Covid-19 patients.

b) Covid-19 Update

GMcL provided a Salford focused verbal update on the Covid-19 as follows:

 Number & severity of cases
o The peak was reached around the Easter weekend
o The number of cases had declined steadily but was currently plateauing
o 80% of cases saw mild or moderate symptoms
o 40% of people who had had the virus would not even know they had had it
o 20% of cases saw more serious symptoms which might see them taking to their bed
o 5% of cases required hospitalisation
o 1% of cases resulted in death
o There was an increased risk of more severe consequences in males, with very few 

young people or children severely impacted
o Death rates in hospital were higher in men aged 50-80
o Death rates in care homes were higher in women aged 80-95 (care home resident 

population female to male ratio approximately 2:1)

Page 3



o More severe impact on over 65s and with pre-existing health conditions
o More severe impact on BAME community, smokers and people with high blood 

pressure and uncontrolled health conditions
o Individuals who faced a greater risk of coming into contact with the virus were those 

who used public transport, had limited or no access to PPE, worked in settings which 
were not cleaned regularly, were unable to practice social distancing, lived or 
worked in more urban areas and worked in predominantly lower paid jobs

o Nationally the ‘R’ rate varied from around 0.5 to 0.9 but in some care homes it was 
probably over 1

 Lockdown measures
o Easing of lockdown measures in other countries had been followed by an increase in 

the number of cases
o Current government guidance was vague and lacked clarity and Public Health 

colleagues were working out what it meant for the city and what needed to be 
communicated and when

 Testing
o Samples from tests carried out at SRFT were sent to NHS labs and the results were 

communicated to Public Health England – any delays could be chased up
o Results of tests carried out at National Testing Centres (Manchester Airport/Haydock 

Park) – pop-ups, home testing and CQC - were only communicated back to the 
person tested – Public Health was aware of delays but not able to chase these up

o Efforts had been made to channel the most vulnerable through Salford labs and the 
AJ Bell stadium

o People being tested at the AJ Bell stadium were employed in Salford but were not 
necessarily Salford residents

o The CQC portal went live on 12 May and care homes could now book testing for staff 
and residents. It was believed that the swabs would be sent to labs in Northern 
Ireland

o Results of tests arranged through the CQC portal would be communicated back to 
the care homes but it was hoped that the Director of Public Health would be able to 
access the results

o Depending on the effectiveness of this portal and the speed of results, testing may 
revert to Primary Care

 Contact tracing
o Countries which had managed the pandemic well had carried out lots of testing and 

contact tracing
o Colleagues across GM were working closely together and a national contact tracing 

service was due to go live by the beginning of June with 15,000 support call handlers 
and 3,000 clinical contact tracers

o Relatively simple cases would be dealt with by the national service but more 
complex cases would be devolved to the localities, this might include homeless 
hostels, refuges and care homes

o Public Health colleagues were keen to work with primary care colleagues to identify 
what this could mean for GP practices

Page 4



The Adults’ Commissioning Committee thanked GMcL for her comprehensive verbal update on 
Covid-19 and KP would take forward the request for GP engagement in preparation for the launch 
of the contract tracing service.

GR took the opportunity to thank all those present for attending and for using Teams so effectively 
for the first Adults’ Commissioning meeting held since social distancing measures were introduced.

The meeting closed at 15:32.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Item 3(b) Matters Arising from 11 March 2020 meeting

1. Minute 5(b) – NWAS performance to be proposed to the GM Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee for a scrutiny review, and

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer at Greater Manchester Combined Authority has confirmed that the 
current chair of the Joint Health Scrutiny is particularly interested in Ambulance response times. The 
joint committee was due to visit NWAS HQ the week before lockdown began but the visit was 
cancelled. 

The work of the joint committee is on hold as it is perhaps not considered to be the best use of the 
sector’s time at the moment. However, the Statutory Scrutiny Officer said that a review of NWAS 
performance might not be ruled out at some point in the future, depending on the scope of what 
was being asked.  

2. Minute 8(b) – Salford Women’s Centre – commissioning and referral process.

In response to claims by the Women’s Centre that they have seen an increase in referrals for 
counselling from Six Degrees, Commissioners raised the issue with Six Degrees.  Six Degrees were 
not able to identify making any referrals for counselling in the last 12 months so are making contact 
with the management team at the Women’s Centre to improve understanding and re-establish 
links/relationship

Page 7

Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



Adults Commissioning Committee

Part 1

Agenda item number: 4

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please bold) 

Date of meeting: 8th July 2020 

Report of: David Warhurst/Karen Proctor

Date of paper: 8th July 2020

Subject: NHS 111

In case of query please contact: David.Warhurst1@nhs.net 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to)

Priority Selection

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research: 

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services):

X

Children’s and Maternity Services: X

Primary Care: X

Enabling Transformation: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Purpose of paper: 

Further explanatory information required

Question Answer

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group?

During the pandemic, there has been 
unprecedented demand on both 999 and 
NHS 111. Maintaining the resilience and 
sustainability of the NWAS services going 
forwards has become paramount as part of 
the key regional and national infrastructure. 
These services failing would pose a 
significant risk to Salford residents.

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated?

There is a financial pressure of £84k in year 
and £164k recurrently. Review of current 
expenditure and through best value 
savings.

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated?

N/A

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them?

N/A

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper.

N/A

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper.

N/A

Footnote:

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 10



  

Document development

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Public engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

X

Clinical engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)?

X

P
age 11



  

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed) 

X

Legal advice sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X Due to the risk of COVID 19, this 
contract extension has been led 
through the Strategic Partnership 
Board in Greater Manchester and 
NHS England/Improvement. 

Direct award the contract 
to NWAS. 
Approach taken aligns to 
the North West Regional 
Director of the NHS 
England/Improvement 
letter dated 29th April 
which outlined the process 
for management of the 
NHS during this pandemic 
and the need for a high 

P
age 12



  

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

level command and control 
approach to be 
maintained.

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work

P
age 13



  

Formal extension of the current NHS111 contract

1. Executive summary
This briefing is to provide the Adult Commissioning Committee with an updated position in relation to 
the plans to issue a direct award to NWAS for the future NHS 111 Integrated Care Service for three 
years. This decision recognises the impact of Covid-19 and the command and control restrictions in 
relation to the NHS, which could be imposed for a significantly longer period of time than originally 
anticipated.
Prior to COVID 19, the decision was to move to a direct award, subject to agreement on the future 
model and financial costs.   With the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic and the pressure this has put 
on all front line NHS services, in particular the Ambulance Service, it was mutually agreed in early 
March to suspend the discussions around the development of the specification and the direct award 
to post Covid-19.  
Following a number of regional discussions supported by NHSE/I North there has been regional 
agreement to extend the current contract for three years effective from 1st October 2020.
The contract extension will be subject to an annual maximum recurrent uplift of £4.7m of which 
£164k is attributable to Salford. Exact costs are to be agreed following further discussions with 
NWAS. These discussions will follow the principles of “open book” with transparency from both 
parties and will be reviewed annually. 
Appendix 1 details the communication that has been sent to CCGs who are associates to the 
contracts. 

2. Recommendations
2.1 The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to approve the additional costs to the 
integrated fund.

Name (Author): David Warhurst

Job title: Chief Finance Officer

Page 14



Appendix 1 – Regional briefing received.

RE: Formal Extension of the Current NHS111 Contract

This briefing is to provide CCGs with an updated position in relation to the plans to issue a direct 
award to NWAS for the future NHSS 111 Integrated Care Service.  Colleagues will be aware that the 
decision to move to a direct award was previously agreed by CCGs subject to agreement on the 
future model and financial costs.   With the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic and the pressure this 
has put on all front line NHS services, in particular the Ambulance Service, it was mutually agreed in 
early March to suspend the discussions around the development of the specification and the direct 
award to post Covid-19.  However, we now know that the impact of Covid-19 and the command and 
control restrictions will be in place for a significantly longer period of time than originally 
anticipated. 

In recent weeks we have seen unprecedented demand on both 999 and NHS 111 Services as part of 
the system response to the pandemic and we have continued to work to support our NWAS 
colleagues.  Although we have seen some recent reductions in demand as we pass through the first 
wave peak, maintaining the resilience and sustainability of the NWAS services going forwards has 
become paramount as part of the key regional and national infrastructure. 

In correspondence with the Strategic Partnership Board (SPB) Leads and NHSE/I it has become clear 
that in order to provide a stable platform going forward we needed to move at pace to agree an 
extension to the current NHS 111 contract to ensure the sustainability and resilience of the service in 
order to safeguard services to patients.  Additionally, our NWAS colleagues need to urgently replace 
their current patient management system in the 111 service and clinical hub; a move that originally 
would have been envisaged alongside the direct award. Following a number of discussions 
supported by NHSE/I North we have therefore agreed to extend the current contract for three years 
effective from 1st October 2020. 

The contract extension will be subject to an annual maximum non-recurring uplift of £4.7m, with the 
exact costs to be agreed following further discussions with NWAS. These discussions will follow the 
principles of “open book” with transparency from both parties and will be reviewed annually.  The 
additional resources required reflect the additional costs of delivering the service going forwards 
and the additional staffing requirements needed to support progress against the national 
performance standards, costs which were not anticipated when the service was originally procured 
in 2015. An annual review process will enable both parties to review the actual costs and progress 
made in delivering key agreed roadmap deliverables. This will provide a level of surety on both sides 
as the current landscape is likely to change significantly following resumption of full activity and this 
approach will mitigate risk on both sides going forward during the lifetime of the contract.

The approach taken is in line with the recent letter from the Regional Director dated 29th April which 
outlined the process for management of the NHS during this pandemic and the need for a high level 
command and control approach to be maintained. SPB regional commissioning leads have therefore 
agreed to extend the current North West NHS 111 contract for a further three year period from the 
1st October 2020 (utilising the vehicle of a formal Blackpool CCG tender waiver, under the Public 
Procurement Regulations provisions that can be used in the pandemic scenario and current 
command & control arrangements), with a financial uplift as described above.

During the lifetime of the contract extension the two parties will progressively move towards the 
original agreed joint aim of an integrated 999 and NHS 111 delivery model, ultimately achieving the 
direct award of an integrated contract no later than the expiry of the extension but earlier where 

Page 15



possible if the parties mutually agree. This latter service transformation will require a whole system 
approach across multiple partners and stakeholders, with the option for future elements of sub-
regional variation, where it is safe, effective and financially viable to do so.

This will require a jointly agreed transformation roadmap setting out key deliverables and expected
milestones to be achieved over the lifetime of the extension. As highlighted above this will be 
reviewed on an annual basis in partnership with the wider system. The initial roadmap is to be 
incorporated into the formal binding contract extension, to include the annual review process.

The decision to extend the current NHS 111 contract was not taken lightly but in the context of the 
ongoing and continuing threat posed by Covid-19, it was essential that we safeguarded the 
continued delivery of the North West NHS 111 service beyond 1st October 2020 whilst, at the same 
time, continuing our progress towards an integrated 999 and NHS 111 service.  We have also 
included the basis of allocation of the cost across the CCG in appendix 1. 

We shall communicate with you further once we have agreed the details that accompany the 
contract extension, including the likely financial impact upon the sub-regions and individual CCGs.

Page 16



Appendix 1
NHS 111 Contract Costs 2020/21 (includes part year costs re: investment) and 2021/21 (full year costs)

12 months
Apr 2020 - Mar 2021

Baseline exc. CQUIN
Cost Pressure

(Existing 111 Service)
Additional Investment 

to progress IUC

 £                          20,320,676 944,000£                            1,405,500£                      22,670,176£          25,019,676£          
NHS North Cumbria CCG  £                                970,718 £45,095 £67,141 1,082,953£             1,195,189£             

NHS Blackburn with Darwen CCG  £                                606,109 £28,157 £41,922 £676,188 746,267£                
NHS Blackpool CCG  £                                652,346 £30,305 £45,120 £727,771 803,196£                
NHS Chorley and South Ribble CCG  £                                523,450 £24,317 £36,205 £583,972 644,494£                
NHS East Lancashire CCG  £                             1,143,127 £53,104 £79,066 £1,275,297 1,407,467£             
NHS Fylde & Wyre CCG  £                                775,019 £36,004 £53,605 £864,628 954,237£                
NHS Greater Preston CCG  £                                596,659 £27,718 £41,269 £665,645 734,632£                
NHS Morecambe Bay CCG  £                             1,121,339 £52,092 £77,559 £1,250,989 1,380,640£             
NHS West Lancashire CCG  £                                193,506 £8,989 £13,384 £215,879 238,252£                
Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria STP £5,611,555 £260,686 £388,129 £6,260,370 £6,909,184

NHS Warrington CCG  £                                699,627 £32,501 £48,390 £780,519 861,410£                
NHS Cheshire CCG  £                             1,926,306 £89,487 £133,235 £2,149,027 2,371,749£             
NHS Wirral CCG  £                                766,100 £35,589 £52,988 £854,677 943,255£                
Cheshire - Cheshire and Merseyside STP £3,392,033 £157,577 £234,613 £3,784,223 £4,176,414

NHS Halton CCG  £                                329,574 £15,310 £22,795 £367,680 405,786£                
NHS Knowsley CCG  £                                416,678 £19,357 £28,820 £464,855 513,032£                
NHS Liverpool CCG  £                             1,318,801 £61,265 £91,216 £1,471,282 1,623,764£             
NHS South Sefton CCG  £                                371,488 £17,258 £25,694 £414,439 457,391£                
NHS Southport and Formby CCG  £                                264,800 £12,301 £18,315 £295,417 326,033£                
NHS St Helens CCG  £                                206,268 £9,582 £14,267 £230,117 253,966£                
Merseyside - Cheshire and Merseyside STP £2,907,610 £135,073 £201,108 £3,243,791 £3,579,973

NHS Bolton CCG  £                                910,032 £42,276 £62,943 £1,015,251 1,120,469£             
NHS Bury CCG  £                                554,425 £25,756 £38,347 £618,528 682,631£                
NHS Heywood, Middleton & Rochdale CCG  £                                669,742 £31,113 £46,323 £747,178 824,615£                
NHS Manchester CCG  £                             1,388,193 £64,489 £96,016 £1,548,697 1,709,202£             
NHS Oldham CCG  £                                516,037 £23,973 £35,692 £575,702 635,367£                
NHS Salford CCG  £                                715,189 £33,224 £49,467 £797,880 880,571£                
NHS Stockport CCG  £                                803,411 £37,323 £55,569 £896,302 989,194£                
NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG  £                                556,751 £25,864 £38,508 £621,123 685,495£                
NHS Trafford CCG  £                                399,680 £18,567 £27,644 £445,892 492,103£                
NHS Wigan Borough CCG  £                                925,301 £42,985 £63,999 £1,032,285 1,139,270£             
Greater Manchester Health & Social Care Partnership (STP) £7,438,761 £345,569 £514,509 £8,298,839 £9,158,917

TOTAL £20,320,676 £944,000 £1,405,500 £22,670,176 £25,019,676

111

TOTAL
Max 2021/22 cost 

including CQUIN
(subject to delivery 
of milestones and 

additional 
resources)

TOTAL
Max 2020/21 cost 

including CQUIN
(subject to delivery 
of milestones and 

additional 
resources)

6 months
Oct 2020 - Mar 2021

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



ADULTS COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

Part 1

Agenda item number: 5

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please bold) 

8th July 2020 

Report of: David Warhurst, Chief Finance Officer

Date of paper: 30th June 2020

Subject: Integrated Fund Financial Plan Report (2020-21)

In case of query please contact: David Warhurst (0161 212 4892)

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to)

Priority Selection

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research: 

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services):

X

Children’s and Maternity Services: X

Primary Care: X

Enabling Transformation: 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Purpose of paper: 

This paper sets out the Integrated Fund budgets for Adults Services. It highlights the main 
changes in the financial plan from the previously agreed Partnership Agreement (2019/20 to 
2023/24).
Within the financial plan are some risks in delivering a balanced financial position which are 
articulated in section 3-5 of the report. Mitigations to offset these risks are also highlighted in 
those sections.
Each committee is asked to comment on the proposed expenditure budget for 2020/21 that they 
are responsible for and note the risks in delivering the plan for 20202/21.

Further explanatory information required

Question Answer

How will this benefit the health and 
wellbeing of Salford residents or 
the Clinical Commissioning 
Group?

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services.

What risks may arise as a result of 
this paper? How can they be 
mitigated?

Financial risks to achieving a balanced 
financial budget are captured in section 5 of 
this report.  Mitigations to these risks are also 
identified in that section.

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated?

N/A

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them?

N/A

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper.

N/A

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper.

N/A

Footnote: Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 20



  

Document development

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Public engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)



Clinical engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)?



P
age 21



  

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed) 



Legal advice sought


Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

 Discussions between CCG and 
council finance colleagues have been 
undertaken to agree the financial 
values within the paper.

Financial values within the 
report have been agreed 
between CCG and Council 
finance colleagues.

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is 
clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular 
part of the work

P
age 22



July 2020

David Warhurst – Interim Chief Finance Officer

Integrated fund – Opening position (Adults)

1

P
age 23



Contents:

Section 1 - Executive Overview

Section 2 - Allocation and key assumptions

Section 3 - Expenditure and key assumptions

Section 4 - Summary of the pool opening position

Section 5 - Risk and issues

Section 6 - Next Steps

Questions

2

P
age 24



Executive overview
Section 1 – Summary for 2020/21

3

Overview – This presentation outlines the Adults Integrated Fund for the 2020/21 financial year only.  Due to 

the COVID 19 pandemic, budget setting for future years has been put on hold; this recognises that COVID 19 
could have a material impact on national guidance.

The funding contributions into the Integrated Fund are a “level 1” decision reserved for the Cabinet and Governing 
Body of the Council and CCG respectively. 

The CCG have confirmed their funding contributions into the integrated fund budget for 2020/21 pre COVID 19, 
but allocations to integrated funds could change subject to a new financial regime for the NHS due in July.

Council figures are still currently draft within this plan as they haven’t been confirmed at present.

COVID-19 – There has been a number of decisions taken nationally that have significantly influenced expenditure 

relating to the integrated fund in 2020/21. One example is NHS England setting the value which localities must 
pay for a number of key contracts until July 2020. Further guidance is due out in July to outline the future month's 

decisions from NHS England.

Opening position – The adults integrated fund overspent by £3.3m in 2019/20. For 2020/21 pre COVID 19, the 

adults integrated fund required savings to be delivered equating to c£2.0m to breakeven, failure to deliver the 

savings would result in a pressure on the locality.

There has been over £19m of funding added for growth, inflation and outturn pressures as well as funding for key 
developments such as moving Adult Social Care staff to £9ph from October 2020.

P
age 25



Allocation Pre COVID-19
Section 2 – Key assumptions

4

Salford CCG - Increase funding in year £15.7m (5.0%)

The CCG added the following funding streams to the opening position of the integrated fund:

� £13.5m - Added in line with the CCG’s 4.33% allocation increase for 2020/21 pre COVID 19. 

� £2.0m - CCG added a further £2.0m of funding to block purchase urgent care at Salford Royal FT and therefore, pre COVID, this would have

significantly reduced the risk of overspend.

� £1.9m - Part of the CCG allocation increase of 4.33% has been transferred from Children’s to Adults’ to fund new pressures for 2020/21.

� (£1.8m) - The CCG’s allocation for the first four months of the year has been reduced based on national decisions. This was taken from the

integrated fund but matched by an equivalent reduction in expenditure budgets – therefore creating no additional pressure to the pool.

Salford City Council (SCC) - Increase funding in year £3.5m (4.4%)

SCC added the following funding streams to the opening position of the integrated fund:

� £3.5m - The Council have included additional grants it has received for 2020/21 in relation to Social Care.  Some of these grants were 

available in 2019/20 non recurrently but have been confirmed as continuing in 2020/21.

* Recurrent grant position for the Council unknown and is therefore set at £0. 

*

P
age 26



Expenditure Pre COVID-19
Section 3 – Key assumptions

5

Key notes and assumptions

� Pay increases (£3.9m) – Funding for the National Living Wage is estimated at £2.9m and is funded as part of opening budgets, 
additionally, a further £1.0m has been included to cover Adult Social Care (ASC) staff moving to £9ph from Oct 2020.

� Adult Social Care (£3.5m) - In 2019/20 ASC overspent by c.£6.1m, of which, £3.3m remained with the provider and £2.8m with 
commissioners. To mitigate this in 2020/21, opening budgets invested £2m more with the Salford Care Org (SCO) and the SCO agreed to 
a £1m saving programme. The balance of £3.1m will be managed 50/50 between commissioners and providers, with a contingency of

£1.5m being set as part of the pool, to offset the risk to commissioners.

� CCG Committed decisions (£1.5m) – £1.0m of this relates to the cancer strategy that the CCG have committed to in particular for 

Palliative Care. There are also a number of smaller investments that are mostly below £0.1m.

P
age 27



Summary Pre COVID-19
Section 4 – Opening Adults Integrated Fund 2020/21

6

Key notes and assumptions

Savings Target – The current £2.0m 

savings target doesn’t include recent 

commissioning decisions on 

Empower You and Tier 2 Weight 

Management, including these 

results in an increases savings target 

of £0.1m.

Committed developments –

Committed developments currently 

contains a number of funding 

streams that will move when 

budgets are finalised:

P
age 28



Risks and assumptions
Section 5 – ACC Integrated fund

7

Savings Target – For 20/21, the pool starts with a savings target of £2.0m,  excluding approved 

business cases for Eating Disorders and Empower  You. The system needs to review if we have a 

list of targeted areas where we expect to make reductions linked to the locality strategy.

Block Contracts – 67% of the expenditure within the pool has been blocked purchased until the 

end of July 2020, with the price set nationally. This means this element won’t overspend, but 

creates a new risk that the CCG’s allocation could be reduced, which will need to be reviewed as 

guidance is made available.

Adult Social Care – To July 2020, any new placement or enhanced care packages will be funded 

nationally, via the NHS, through COVID 19 claim forms.  Therefore there will be no increased 

costs associated with placements monitored though the Adult’s Integrated Fund. Going forward, 

the key risk will be market stabilisation and the review of capacity and demand as we start to 

come out of COVID 19.

Investments – Under the current financial regime running to at least July 2020, the NHS is only 

able to make new investments in response to COVID 19 or that have been approved by NHS 

England/Improvement. 

P
age 29



Risks and assumptions
Section 6 – Next Steps

8

Finance Regime – Currently the CCG’s financial regime is in place up to the end of July 2020. The 

CCG is still awaiting national guidance on the future financial regime beyond July 202o, this is 

expected to be announced around mid-July 2020.

Performance – The CCG and Council finance colleagues are currently working through the best 

way to present performance under the current financial regimes of both organisations and the 

implications for the integrated fund. It is hoped this can be resolved for the August 2020 

committee meetings when the next finance report is due.

Strategies – The locality is reviewing strategies recognising the significant change as a result of 

the pandemic, the financial envelope will be integral to help prioritise work streams whilst 

maintaining financial balance.

P
age 30



9

Recommendation to the committee 
The committee is asked to note:

• The pre COVID 19 opening financial position of the integrated fund, and the initial savings target of £2.0m.

• Risks associated with COVID 19 and examples of impacts on the integrated fund.

• The next steps, including the CCGs financial regime expected mid July 2020.

P
age 31



Questions

10

P
age 32



Adults Commissioning Committee

Part 1

Agenda item number: 6

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information

08 July 2020

Report of: Charlotte Ramsden/Karen Proctor

Date of paper: 02 July 2020

Subject: Adults Commissioning Committee Annual Business Plan & 
Adults Advisory Board System Strategic Priorities

In case of query please contact: Karen Proctor

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to)

Priority Selection

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research: 

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services):

X

Children’s and Maternity Services: X

Primary Care: 

Enabling Transformation: X

Purpose of paper: To present the adults CCG and Council 
commissioning workplans for 2020/21. In addition, to introduce the 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



adults strategic system priorities which all health and social care 
partners have co-produced.

Further explanatory information required

Question Answer

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group?

Continuous improvement of patient/resident 
services 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated?

Raised expectations about what is feasible 
during this period of a Pandemic

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated?

Considered at an individual workstream 
level

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them?

No specific, single risk

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper.

N/A

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper.

N/A

Footnote:

Members of the Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once 
papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 34



  

3

Document development

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Public engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

X

Clinical engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

X Developed with the Adults Advisory 
Board members

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)?

X To be considered for individual 
projects

P
age 35



  

4

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed) 

X To be considered for individual 
projects

Legal advice sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X Adults Advisory Group

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work

P
age 36



  

5

Adults Commissioning Committee Annual Business 
Plan & Adults Advisory Board System Strategic 
Priorities 

1. Executive summary
The main aim of this paper is to present to the committee the current commissioning work 
plan for 2020/21 for adult services (Appendix 2). The background to our planning for the 
year is summarised, along with the impact and context of COVID-19 response and 
recovery.

There are a number of limitations and caveats to the plan, which are outlined.

In addition, it outlines integrated work, between commissioners, partners and providers of 
adult services; specifically an agreement on a set of Strategic System Priorities (Appendix 
6) which all partners will work collaboratively on during 2020/21 and beyond.

Delivery against these plans will be reported to the committee throughout the year.

The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 Agree the Adults Commissioning Work Plan (Appendix 2), noting that it is subject to 
iterations for the reasons outlined, and

 Note the Adults Strategic System Priorities work (Appendix 6).

2. Background
2.1 For the past several years, the CCG and Council have developed joint 

commissioning business plans. For the CCG, this is heavily influenced by national 
NHS planning guidance and process. The background to this is summarised below.

2.2 NHS England Chief Executive, Simon Stevens, launched the NHS Long Term Plan 
(LTP) on 7th January 2019.  Salford is in a very strong position against most of the 
themes outlined within the LTP; with a strong history of investment in mental health 
services and in primary care services; a drive to move services from acute to 
community settings and with a clear focus on early identification in everything from 
cancer diagnosis to childhood development difficulties. 

Page 37



  

6

2.3 In addition to the Long Term Plan, NHS England published its Operational Planning 
and Contracting Guidance 2020/21 on 3rd June 2019 and further detailed guidance 
on 30th January 2020. In summary, the guidance covered the delivery task for both 
NHS providers and commissioners, covering system planning, finances, operational 
performance and workforce. Local systems were required to develop system-wide 
strategic plans to implement the NHS Long Term Plan. Greater Manchester’s 
system-level planning, as well as Salford’s submissions through the autumn and 
winter were made in line with these requirements.

2.4 The GM Health & Care Partnership was working to finalise its 5 year Delivery Plan 
for 2020-24 spanning three main sections (Our Population’s Health, Building a 
Sustainable System and Unlocking Our Economic Potential).  COVID-19 means that 
work on this has been paused. 

2.5 In line with national and GM planning requirements, Salford refreshed its Locality 
Plan in 2019/20.  The locality plan is the ‘blueprint’ for well-being, health and social 
care in Salford; it is a public health led, system plan. Launched in April 2016, it 
explains how providers of public services - like the NHS, Salford City Council, Fire 
Service and Police - will work closely together with the private and voluntary sector 
so services work better and cost less.  A draft of the refreshed Locality Plan was 
shared with the Health and Wellbeing Board in February 2020, however sign off was 
not completed due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  The draft document will need to be 
reviewed again in light of COVID-19, which we hope to commence in the next few 
weeks.

3. Salford 2020/21 Joint Business Planning

3.1 Each year, as part of the annual planning process, the Salford health and social care 
system comes together to consider the overarching aims in the Locality Plan and 
how they can best be delivered.  This year, the planning process began in 
September 2019 and, as in previous years the Council and CCG were working to 
develop a strong prioritised annual plan for 2020/21 aligned to the refreshed Salford 
Locality Plan, incorporating new national planning requirements and GM priorities 
and ensuring agreed activities are appropriately costed and resourced.

3.2 The 2020/21 annual plan for health and social care was jointly drafted across the 
CCG and Salford City Council, led by the Joint Head of Planning and Performance. 
Planning updates were provided to the Health and Care Commissioning Board and 
Joint Committees throughout the planning process.  

3.3 For 2020/21, annual planning was split under 6 strategic workstreams and continued 

Page 38



  

7

to build on the joint planning arrangements already in place across children’s health and 
social care, population health, adults’ health and social care and primary care.  Working 
closely with the Integrated Commissioning Joint Leadership Team, we agreed a joint 
approach to planning for 2020/21 which included facilitated workshops across the 
following themes:

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research,
 Primary Care, 
 Joint Children’s and Maternity Services, 
 Joint Adult Services (including Learning Disabilities and Autism), 
 All age Mental Health Services, and
 Enablers (CCG Only).

3.4 The planning workshops were scheduled throughout January – March 2020, and all 
but the Quality and Enablers workshops took place with colleagues across health 
and social care prior to our attention being diverted to the COVID-19 response.  

3.5 As in previous years, we were well on our way to developing a strong prioritised 
business plan for 2020/21 aligned to the draft refreshed Salford Locality Plan and the 
new NHS Long Term Plan, incorporating new national planning requirements and 
GM transformation priorities.  Appendix 1 shows the draft strategic aims for each of 
the workstream areas.

3.6 Approval of annual plans including the operational plan was due to be conducted 
through the existing joint committees and governance of Salford CCG and Salford 
City Council in March to May 2020.  

3.7 In March 2020, in light of COVID-19 it was recommended nationally that the NHS 
defer publication of any plans until the autumn.  As such, the planning timescales we 
were working to ceased and staff were redeployed to respond to the COVID-19 
crisis.  

4. COVID-19 Recovery

4.1 As committee members will appreciate, both the City Council and CCG have been 
focused on the COVID-19 response over recent weeks, as summarised in recent 
reports to Council and Governing Body:

Salford City Council (pgs 347-380): 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g2676/Public%20reports%20pack%
20Wednesday%2017-Jun-2020%2009.30%20Council.pdf?T=10

Page 39

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g2676/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2017-Jun-2020%2009.30%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g2676/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2017-Jun-2020%2009.30%20Council.pdf?T=10


  

8

NHS Salford CCG (pgs 10-63):
https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/8815/9256/8600/Combined_Paper
s_-_Governing_Body_-_24.6.20.pdf

4.2 As we move from the initial response phase of COVID-19, we begin to consider how 
the health and care system provides the best care and treatment possible during a 
“living with COVID-19” phase as well as the longer term system “recovery”.  The 
transition from response to recovery in an emergency can sometimes be unclear, 
particularly in a prolonged emergency such as COVID-19.  We know that the 
response phase to COVID-19 will be prolonged over a number of months, and 
possibly years. This is likely to require a rapid response to a broad range of impacts 
which will emerge and intensify at various points in time – and these points will be 
largely determined by the ‘curve’ of the outbreak (including any ‘waves’) and the 
changes in government measures nationally, particularly as we continue to see the 
relaxation of social distancing measures.

4.3 Taking into account national guidance, based on discussions with partners across 
Greater Manchester, planning is now for three overlapping phases of recovery:

 Easing out of lockdown: over the next six months most likely to the end of 2020, 
and will clearly overlap with our ongoing response,

 Living with COVID-19: a period at least up to 12 months, most likely to mid-2021, 
and

 ‘Building Back Better’, which in Salford has been enhanced as building back 
better and fairer.

4.4 Please note that throughout this report the word recovery is used in its loosest 
sense, recognising the huge loss that individuals and communities have experienced 
during this crisis, and also recognising the community response and some service 
changes that have been made during this period, which provide opportunities to 
“build back better and fairer”.

4.5 In reality, there will be some inevitable overlap in the various phases, particularly if 
we experience second or third waves of the virus and due to the impact of various 
relaxations in social distancing, changes to health protection advice and evaluation 
of national and local responses. 

5. Current approach to business planning

5.1 The CCG and Council commissioning workplan is being considered in the four areas:

Page 40

https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/8815/9256/8600/Combined_Papers_-_Governing_Body_-_24.6.20.pdf
https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/8815/9256/8600/Combined_Papers_-_Governing_Body_-_24.6.20.pdf


  

9

 Adults,
 Childrens,
 Primary Care, and
 All age Mental Health.

5.2 In addition to these, there are the two cross cutting areas of quality and enabling 
transformation. These areas are not as far progressed as the planning workshops 
had not taken place for these prior to the COVID-19 response.  

5.3 The work plans drafted in Feb/March have now been revisited in order to give clarity 
to the commissioning committees and commissioning teams about priority pieces of 
work for the remainder of 2020/21. It has been necessary to defer some pieces of 
work until 2021/22 due to capacity constraints linked to COVID-19 response and 
recovery.

5.4 Appendix 2 is the outcome of that review for Adult Services. For completeness and 
information attached at Appendix 3 & 4 are the commissioning work plans for 
Childrens Services and Primary Care.

5.5 Normally at this time of year, the work plans are fully complete, reflected in staff 
objectives and reporting on delivery has commenced. The COVID-19 interruption 
means that these current plans:

 include some actions that require further definition,
 may miss some recently emerging work, and
 are missing the full range of work associated with COVID-19 response & 

recovery.

5.6 What has yet to fully take place is an assessment of our plans against available 
commissioning staff capacity, which is currently still compromised due to the COVID-
19 response and recovery and could be impacted further with any further pandemic 
waves in the coming months.

5.7 It should also be noted that the NHS is anticipating revised national planning 
guidance which is likely to influence our priorities and work plan, although to some 
extent this guidance is already predicted within our plans. So, it is expected that 
there will be an iterative process to refining plans during this year, which may well 
leave us well placed in respect of our work plans for 2021/22.

5.8 In prioritising work and determining an approach, due regard is being given to:

Page 41



  

10

 addressing inequalities, including those which may have been exacerbated by 
COVID-19

 ‘building back better and fairer’
 engaging with the public
 engaging with clinicians and partner organisations, including the VCSE sector
 building social value

6. Adults Strategic System Priorities

6.1 Strategic system planning, across the Council, CCG, providers and partners, is well 
established as part of Salford’s integrated care approach. Salford commissioners 
and providers of health and care have historically collaborated on agreeing system 
priorities and workstreams to support delivery of both the Locality Plan and NHS 
Long Term Plan. This has included agreeing workstreams to collectively deliver 
priorities, which encompass transformation and service redesign. 

6.2 The COVID-19 emergency response resulted in some of these priority activities 
pausing, along with some core services being suspended or changed. As service 
resumption is now in train there are new opportunities to build the transformation and 
innovation tested during COVID-19 into future service delivery and also to review 
and align existing transformation plans. 

6.3 The Adults Integrated Care Transformation Programme tested and evaluated new 
models of integrated care from 2016/17 to 2019/20, supported by £18.2m of Greater 
Manchester Transformation funding. Benefits for citizens, staff and the system were 
indicated, such as improved experiences/quality of life and improvements in key 
activity measures; such as A&E attendances, non-elective admissions and 
residential care admissions.  

6.4 A programme of transformation (phase 2) to continue to progress and develop new 
models of integrated care for adults during 2020/21 to 2021/22 was proposed as the 
next steps. The outline models and aims were approved by the Adults 
Commissioning Committee and the CCG Governing Body approved a CCG 
investment of £3.3m in January 2020. The investment for phase two was to develop 
the community Urgent Response Team, a ‘Homesafe’ discharge team and to add 
therapy, mental health and pharmacy to the existing social work and nursing service 
within the Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.  A summary of the objectives of this 
plan is presented in Appendix 5, with some highlights of next steps. 

Page 42



  

11

6.5 The phase 2 transformation plan involved an additional 87 WTE staff, although some 
of these were already in post from phase one.  The Covid-19 response meant that 
the recruitment of additional staffing was paused and as of June 2020 there are 35 of 
the 87 staff in post. Staff were redeployed to enable the Urgent Response Team and 
Homesafe team to fully support the COVID-19 response. As these staff resume their 
roles, recruitment plans will recommence. 

6.6 In recent weeks, members of the Adults Advisory Board and the COVID-19 Adults 
Health & Care Coordination Group have taken part in workshops to agree a new set 
of Strategic System Priorities. This has been important as it was recognised that the 
COVID response had necessitated a focus on immediately necessary actions and 
had afforded less opportunity for progressing our integration ambition. A 
collective/consensus approach also facilitates the whole system focusing on the 
same objectives.

6.7 The outcome of those workshops is presented in the schematic included at Appendix 
6. The broad titles of the agreed priorities are:

1. Prevention
2. Adult Social Care Market Shaping
3. Integrated Community
4. Primary & Community Mental Health
5. Urgent Care Redesign

6.8 Some of this work is not new, but may have an enhanced focus post-COVID19. We 
are at the stage of defining the scope of each priority area. It is anticipated that the 
resulting workstreams will become the work plan of the Adults Advisory Board for this 
year and onwards.

7. Recommendations

7.1 The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 agree the Adults Commissioning Work Plan (Appendix 2), noting that it is subject 
to iterations for the reasons outlined, and

 note the Adults Strategic System Priorities work (Appendix 6).

Name: Karen Proctor

Job title: Director of Commissioning, NHS Salford CCG

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – Workstream Strategic Aims

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Adults 2020 - 21 Commissioning Work Plan 

    

Strategic Programme 2020 - 21 Actions 

Adult Social Care 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adult Social Care Market Shaping' 

Define scope for needs assessment to support development and publication of a new Market Position Statement for Salford 

Map financial flows in Adult Social Care 

Care market planning following budget announcements 

Adults Care Pathways 

Review of Neuro-rehab pathway for personalised packages of care and care pathways 

GM Dermatology - Roll out and implementation of the GM model framework, Clinical Pathways for key conditions and GM wide 
delivery of the Decide Dermatology Education and Training programme and review of GM wide advice and guidance 

Evaluation of the direct to test pathway for endoscopy at SRFT 

Review and scope the delivery of rapid access diagnostics for cancer for Salford patients 

Undertake service improvements for wheelchair services including the introduction of personal health budgets 

Work with SRFT on improvements to diagnostics performance 

Outpatient reform - Ensure main providers meet 30% requirements from Long Term Plan (Digital) 

Communication between hospital and primary care (clinical communication group) 

Support the transfer of elective orthopaedics from Trafford 

Deliver local actions outlined in CCGs cancer plan aligned to GM Cancer Plan 

P
age 47



Adults Community Health, Care & 
VSCE 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adults Integrated Community' 

Implement monitoring and reporting systems are developed and implemented for the next phase of transformation new models of 
care and that learning is fed into future commissioning decisions 

Further develop Salford's strategic approach to VCSE 

Complete the 2020/21 Service Level Agreement and develop longer term integrated commissioning arrangements with the 
Community for Voluntary Services (CVS) 

Develop a strategic approach to the reconfiguration of intermediate/community beds across the city 

Implement actions from the Carer's Strategy 

Adults Public Health 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adults Prevention' 

CURE Implementation and Evaluation 

Strategic review of Salford Community Leisure 

Develop a Physical Activities Plan 

Urgent Care Services 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Urgent Care Redesign' 

Develop proposals for the redesign of health and social care delivery models 

Implementation of an urgent treatment centre on the acute site and review the provision of wider urgent care services 

Adults Mental Health 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adults Primary/Community Mental Health' 

Promotion of health and well being advice 

Commission Healthwatch Salford to undertake engagement work to inform the evaluation of Living Well 

Review Mental Health support available to health and care staff 

P
age 48



Grants service for VCSE linking to living well 

Explore links between Wellbeing Matters and Living Well 

Oversee the pilot phase of Living Well in Broughton with a view to further rollout to another neighbourhood during 2020-21 

Mental Health Crisis & Hospital to 
Home 

Supporting care leavers 

Review mental health care pathways including: role and function of adult mental health residential care and supported 
accommodation 

Implement crisis interventions for adults which provide alternatives to A&E and inpatient services and ensure fidelity to crisis and 
homes based treatment requirements 

Suicide prevention training 

Quality assurance for MH Placements 

Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT) 

Work in partnership with IAPT providers to identify solutions to workforce challenges which are impacting on IAPT performance 

Improve pathways between IAPT services and key physical health services such as Health Psychology, Cardiology, COPD and 
Diabetes, and explore potential of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT LTCs FYFV ambition 

IAPT and LD, sensory disabilities 

    

 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Childrens 2020 - 21 Commissioning Work Plan 

    

Strategic Programme 2020 - 21 Actions 

Childrens Care 

SEND review action: All age equipment services 

Implementation of the young carers/young adult carer working group to provide expertise and guidance to oversee and contribute to 
ensure that the young carers objectives are progressed 

Embed and further develop an integrated locality model to ensure families, children and young people (0-25 yrs) are offered early 
help which is timely and empowers families to take control of their lives 

Complex Safeguarding of Children and Young People 

Implement a whole systems, asset based approach to tackling Domestic Abuse within the city 

Transitions (to include reference to parent and infant mental health, all age approaches and early help) 

Develop and implement a strengths based practice model for Salford Children’s Services, exploring the use of “Signs of Safety” and 
Family Group Conferences. 

Scope the future commissioning requirements in relation to complex safeguarding 

Strengthening Families Programme to evidence a reduction in the number of parents who have repeated children looked after 
following birth. The strategic steering group to identify gaps and scale up 

Implement actions following SEND review 

Supporting Adults (reference to living well, map to existing work and determine what's next) identify commissioning priorities and 
develop intervention in relation to supporting parents 

Implement approach to reducing the numbers of children placed outside the city (Route 29) 

Implementation of a new needs-led integrated neuro-development pathway for children and young people aged 0-25 

Support the implementation of the national statutory changes and GM developments of the Child Death Overview process as the 
accountability becomes the CCGs 

P
age 51



Work in partnership with Salford City Council to develop an integrated approach to quality assurance for children's services, 
including public health 

Childrens Health 

Review of Community paediatric services (i.e. Paediatric Occupational Therapy/Physiotherapy Equipment/orthotics/dietetics 

Review Access to Acute Paediatric Services (i.e. PANDA unit provision and Paediatric impatient and surgical beds) 

Implement and evaluate the paediatric avoidable admissions care bundle 

Explore opportunity for the introduction of Personal Health Budgets for Children and young people in Mental Health Services 

Finalise Paediatric Ophthalmology contract arrangements 

Determine future commissioning arrangements for Ingleside BCC 

Explore options to address the identified need for paediatric end of life and palliative care services 

Childrens Mental Health 

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health to provide early intervention to improve attachment and bonding. 

GM facilitated funded programme for CYP to train as Thrive champions (intentional peer support) 

Finalise, seek approval for and implement new transitions policy and guidance for young people with complex needs and to support 
improved mental health transitions 

Review counselling for children & young People within Salford (including bereavement and palliative care) 

Review Thrive Plan to identify actions for 2020-21 annual plan (all age MH). Actions to be aligned to All age MH aims. 

Mental health in education - Learn from mentally healthy schools, links to physical activity 

Develop and implement GM/national pathfinder plan for roll out of Mental Health Support teams in Salford schools, building on 
CAMHS School Link Model, EFS and other good practice 

P
age 52



Implement an integrated eating disorder pathway for young people, with non-interruption of care at age 18 and/or earlier access to 
adult services if and when needed 

Develop a support and supervision network to support children's workforce to ensure they receive the support they need to carry out 
their work safely and confidently 

Childrens Public Health 

Family weight management 

Continue work with NHS England, Public Health England, primary care and wider partners to increase uptake of immunisations and 
screening across the life course 

Population Health funded actions related to Start Well 

Start Well - Evaluate and embed agreed recommendations of the Start Well programme 

Continue to work with CCG on the redesign of the weight management pathway and strengthen the service for children and young 
people 

Identify the needs for children and young people in Salford to make healthy choices, stay safe and minimise risky behaviours 

    
 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4: Primary Care 2020 - 21 Commissioning Work Plan 

    

Strategic Programme 2020 - 21 Actions 

Primary Care Digital 

Increase online access to records 

Increase use of Primary Care Apps 

Introduce direct booking from NHS111 

Support the development of e-consultations (procure something to offer practices and exploit benefits to improve patient flow) 

Develop dashboard to support PCNs, to support PCN development/delivery and monitoring of metrics 

Action linked to Transformation e.g. GP system procurement 

Primary Care Estates 

Consider how Primary Care estates can be more sustainable, environmental ambitions 

Scope feasibility - Primary Care possibilities in Pendleton Leisure Centre 

Determine the scope of the Quays development informed by the progress of the Quays pilot and progress to outline specification 

Progress the Lower Broughton scheme to approved agreement with developer 

Progress development  of primary care estate in Irlam 

Progress development of Limes 

Little Hulton - transition to new premises for practice to deliver as normal. Facilitate agreement re community services use 

P
age 55



Primary Care Reducing Variation 
& Inequalities 

Review, amend and oversee delivery of 2020-21 Salford Standard to reflect priorities in COVID-19 environment 

Development of 2021-22 Salford Standard to reflect priorities in a COVID-19 environment 

Implement learning from previous poor performing practice - develop and disseminate new policies as required 

Test and Deliver Primary Care assurance framework 

Primary Care Transformation 

Support PCNs to implement the additional roles reimbursement scheme 

Provide operational support to practices in response to COVID, for example via PCN huddles, review to develop sustainable 
arrangements  

Improve access to primary care for vulnerable groups, e.g. the homeless population 

Improve Primary Care support function arrangements (e.g. ERS interpretation/translation) 

Agree business case for new locally optometric services 

Review care home GP specification to include extra care requirements – appropriate primary care support for any new extra care 
facilities – effect on primary care of wider commissioning decisions plus housing decisions 

Review SPCT COVID services and consider future requirements (e.g. COVID assessment services, AJ Bell testing facility, etc.) 

Primary Care Workforce 

Non-clinical workforce 

 Social Value - Apprenticeships 

Ways of working - capacity and resilience of workforce 

    
 

P
age 56



Appendix 5: Next steps for Transformation Programme Phase Two

Neighbourhoods - Objectives Update at June 2020 Proposed Next Steps
i. Expand the existing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 

(INT), which are district nurses and social workers, 
through the addition of leadership, therapy, pharmacy and 
mental health (building on the learning from the Enhanced 
Care Team). 

On hold during Covid To review staffing/skills mix requested and 
commence recruitment
Restart staff consultation for staff with changed 
role 

ii. Develop approaches to joint assessment, care planning 
and review within both the INT and with the wider 
neighbourhood health services including Primary Care 
and VCSE sector (building on the learning from the 
MDGs). Also known as Pro-active Care

MS Teams (virtual meetings) tested 
effectively during Covid which was a prior 
proposal for communication around joint 
care. MDGs stood down therefore joint 
assessment is on individualised patient 
basis

Meeting commenced to support planning for 
proactive care model. Pathways workstream 
progressing with three areas of Advice and 
Guidance, diagnostics and specialists support in 
community. Hospital specialties offering Advice 
and guidance (A&G) to be expanded.

iii. Establish a joint neighbourhood leadership team to plan 
and oversee population health management in the 
neighbourhood (building on the leadership development 
programme to date)

Leadership team established prior to 
Pandemic and was meeting regularly

Re-start 

iv. Provide specialist input in neighbourhoods from 
Geriatrician and Nurse Consultant for very complex or 
frail patients who would benefit from additional support

Specialist input being provided, new A&G 
function established for Geriatrician 
support. Planning for frailty clinics started

Plan delivery model linking into proactive care 
approach 

v. Embed Strengths Based Approaches across the 
neighbourhood through implementation of Community 
Led Support

Adult Social Care response is testing a 
new proportionate assessment and ways 
of meeting need differently, using 
community assets

Strengths Based on-line festival has taken place 
in June
Project plan to be reviewed. 

Intermediate Care - Objectives
i. Develop Integrated Community Urgent Response Team 

through combining Urgent Care Team and Rapid 
Response Service (also known as Step-up). 

Merging of team has been enacted 
Test of Change has taken place with GP 
input and NHS 111 calls now filtered to 
Primary Care Hub
Performance dashboard work 
commenced. Hospital at Home Test of 
Change started

To review staffing/skills mix requested and 
commence outstanding recruitment
Standard Operating Procedure  to be revised
Pathways work to re-commence
Communication /rebranding to start 
Performance Dashboard to be completed

ii. Expand ‘Homesafe’ function with improved staffing 
capacity to support patients to be discharged home safely 
sooner with for re-ablement, rehabilitation and support for 
health and wellbeing.

Capacity increased in Covid through 
redeployment however staff now returning 
to roles

To review staffing/skills mix requested and 
commence recruitment

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6: Salford Adults Strategic System Priorities (2020/21)

Covid 
Response

Capacity & Winter Planning

Restarting Services/'Build Back Better & Fairer'

Service back logs/long waiters/demand increases

Adults Strategic System Priorities (2020/21) 

ASC Market 
Shaping

Care Homes
Home Care

Prevention

Place Holder

Integrated 
Community

Wellbeing Matters,  
Intergrated 

Community  Teams,
--------------------

 Community based  
(Hospital/

community/GP) 
Asessment & 
Diagnostics

Urgent Care 
Redesign

Hospital, 
Community, 

Mental Health & 
Primary Care 
Urgent Care 

Services

Primary/Community 
Mental Health

Living Well
Wellbeing Matters

Cross cutting priorities: Tackling Inequalities, Digital, Estates and Innovation, Improvement & Research

Pu
bl

ic
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t &
 A

dd
re

ss
in

g 
In

eq
ua

lit
ie

s

Design Principles: Strength Based Approach, Neighbourhood Delivery, Social Value, Environmental Sustainability

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Sy

st
em

 P
ar

tn
er

s:
  C

CG
, C

ou
nc

il,
 C

VS
, G

M
M

H,
 L

M
C,

 P
CN

s,
 S

PC
T 

&
 S

RF
T

P
age 59



Appendix 6: Salford Adults Strategic System Priorities (2020/21)

Next Steps

2-3 individuals per workstream/column to draft proposed scope/leadership, 
SROs/governance/timescale 

Prioritise the Priorities? – at least in speed of delivery

Ensure link to Covid Recovery work e.g. NCA Recovery Cells

Confirm Governance – Adults Advisory Board & Adults Commissioning Committee

Take forward various Primary Care workstreams identified at the workshops via Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee Governance

Other work to be carried out within individual organisations.

P
age 60


	Agenda
	3a Draft Minutes for Approval
	3b Matters Arising
	4 NHS 111 - Contract Extension
	04 - Appendix 1 2020-05-19 CCG Briefing  NHS 111

	5 Integrated Fund Financial Plan Report (2020-21)
	05 - Integrated Fund Financial Plan Report (2020-21) - Presentation Report

	6 Adults Strategic System Priorities and Full Annual Business Plan
	06 - Appendix 1 - Strategic aims
	06 - Appendix 2 - Adults Commissioning Workplan
	06 - Appendix 3 - Childrens Commissioning Workplan
	06 - Appendix 4 - Primary Care Commissioning Workplan
	06 - Appendix 5 - Next steps for Transformation Programme Phase Two
	06 - Appendix 6 - Adults Strategic System Priorities for 2020 - 21


